
LOCAL ADVISORY 
BOARD MEETING
TUESDAY 
JUNE 15, 2021



 

 

Office of the Chancellor 
 

505.728.2407 l 705 Gurley Avenue l Gallup, New Mexico 87301 l malm@unm.edu 

gallup.unm.edu 

 

UNM-GALLUP LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 | 1:00 p.m. | Board Room (Gurley Hall 1216A)  

 

AGENDA: 
 

I. Call to Order 
A. Confirmation of a Quorum 
B. Adoption of the Agenda | Ralph Richards, Chair 

 
II. Vote to Approve Minutes: April 20, 2021 

 
III. Public Comments Related to Items on the Agenda (Limit: 3 minutes per speaker) 

All speakers must sign in with the recording secretary at lambc@unm.edu 
 

IV. Comments from Local Advisory Board Members Related to Items on the Agenda 
 

V. Chancellor’s Report | Dr. James Malm –  
A. UNM Expiring Policies and Guidance Under COVID-19 Limited Operation: Full Return to 

Campus by August 2, 2021. 
B. UNM-Gallup Campus Summary of Current and Plant Fund Report: 2021 Period 11 
C. UNM-Gallup Enrollment Management Weekly Activity Reports: Summer and Fall Dashboards, 

June 14, 2021 
D. NM Department of Higher Education 2021 Summer Hearing - Five Year Capital Project Funding 

Plan: 2022 GOB UNM-Gallup Gurley Hall Student Experience Project. 
E. NM Higher Education Department Capital Outlay Funding Project Evaluation Form Fiscal Year 

2023: Gurley Hall Student Experience Project. 
 

VI. New Business | Ralph Richards, Chair 
A. Vote - Review annually per (300.1) UNM Gallup Campus Local Advisory Board Bylaws – 

Through the Fourth Amendment Adopted & Included April 4, 2017 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/pdfs/LocalBoardByLaws.pdf. 

B. Vote - Review at least biennially per Bylaws (300.2) the Operation Agreement between the 
Board of Regents of the University of New Mexico and the Local Board of the Gallup Campus of 
the University of New Mexico https://www.gallup.unm.edu/pdfs/LB-Operating-Agreement-
signed.pdf. 

C. Vote - Establish annually per Bylaws (310.2) Regular Meetings – Dates and Times FY2021-22 
D. Vote and Sign - Open Meetings Act Resolution in accordance with NMSA 1976, Section 10-15-1 

through 10-15-4 and NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1.C. 
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/pdfs/20200625-Signed-Open-Mtg-Resolution-2020-2021.pdf 

E. Vote and Sign - Local Advisory Board Code of Ethics – FY2021-22. 
  

mailto:lambc@unm.edu
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/pdfs/LocalBoardByLaws.pdf
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/pdfs/LB-Operating-Agreement-signed.pdf
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/pdfs/LB-Operating-Agreement-signed.pdf
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/pdfs/20200625-Signed-Open-Mtg-Resolution-2020-2021.pdf


 

 

Office of the Chancellor 
 

505.728.2407 l 705 Gurley Avenue l Gallup, New Mexico 87301 l malm@unm.edu 

gallup.unm.edu 

F. Vote - Election of Local Advisory Board Officers per Bylaws (120): The Board shall elect a 
chairperson, a vice chairperson and a secretary from among its members...The Term of office 
shall be for one year beginning immediately upon election and ending...when successors have 
been duly elected. 

G. McKinley County Bureau of Elections Notice: UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board Positions 1 and 
2 to be filled by voters of the McKinley County School service area (four-year term) at the 
November 2, 2021 Elections. 
 

 
VII. Old Business | Ralph Richards, Chair 

 
VIII. Public Comments Not Related to Items on the Agenda (Limit: 3 minutes per speaker) 

All speakers must sign in with recording secretary at lambc@unm.edu 
 

IX. Adjourn 
 
 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified language interpreter, or 
any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the meeting, please contact the Chancellor’s 
Office lambc@unm.edu as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be 
provided in various accessible formats. Please contact the Chancellor’s Office if a summary or other type of 
accessible format is needed. 

mailto:lambc@unm.edu
mailto:lambc@unm.edu


 

 
 

 705 Gurley Avenue l Gallup, New Mexico 87301  
gallup.unm.edu 

 
UNM-GALLUP ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES  
Tuesday, April 20th, 2021 | 1:00 P.M. | Zoom 
 
UNM-GALLUP LOCAL BOARD:   UNM-GALLUP STAFF & GUESTS:  
 
Becky Apel  Present   James Malm, Chancellor  
Ed Begay  Absent   Dan Primozic, Director of Business Operations 
Teri Garcia  Present   Lee Lamb, Sr. Public Relations Specialist 
Ralph Richards  Present   Brittany Babycos, Sr. Institutional Researcher 
Priscilla Smith  Absent   Jayme McMahon, Dir. Student Affairs 
 
AGENDA ITEM I: CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Ralph Richards called the April 20, 2021 regular meeting of the UNM-Gallup Local Advisory Board to 
order at 1:00 p.m. Chair Ralph Richards asked for roll call. A quorum was present.  
 
AGENDA ITEM II:  
VOTE TO APPROVE MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Teri Garcia to approve the February 19, 2021, minutes as presented, seconded by Becky Apel 
and approved unanimously by voice vote.  
 
AGENDA ITEM III:  
PUBLIC COMMENTS RELATED TO ITEMS ON AGENDA 
 
None.  
 
AGENDA ITEM IV:  
COMMENTS FROM LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERS RELATED TO ITEMS ON AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM V: 
CHANCELLOR’S REPORT 
 
 

A. Dr. James Malm presented, and the board discussed, the Northwest New Mexico Council of 
Governments Stronger Together Coalition Partnership Agreement Invitation and Letter of Support 
request from Evan Williams, executive director.  

B. Dr. James Malm presented, and the board discussed, UNM Planning, Design & Construction Facility 
Assessment and Project Identification Concepts for Gurley Hall and Career and Technical Education 
Upgrade in Place Scenarios. 2020 Capital Projects General Obligation Bond Act: Three million dollars 
($3,000,000) to plan, design, furnish and equip renovations campuswide, including renovations to the 
existing center for career technologies facility, at the Gallup branch campus of the university of New 
Mexico in McKinley County. 

C. Dr. Daniel Primozic presented on the April 16, 2021, UNM-Gallup Faculty Assembly Election of Officers 
for the 2022 Academic Year. Matthew Mingus is president-elect; Aretha Matt is vice president elect, 



 

 
 

 705 Gurley Avenue l Gallup, New Mexico 87301  
gallup.unm.edu 

and Keri Stevenson is secretary-elect. He then reported on the final approval of the new UNM-Gallup 
Process Technology certificate by the UNM Board of Regents. 

D. Robert Griego provided the UNM-Gallup Campus Summary of Current and Plant Fund Report for 2021 
Period 9. He also provided an update on the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental 
Appropriations Act of 2021 (CRRSAA) and the U.S. Department of Higher Education Emergency Relief 
Funds (HERFF) Distributions. He then provided a foundation report and endowment spending 
distribution.  

E. Jayme McMahon provided an update on summer and fall 2021 enrollment and discussed with board 
members planning around the Spring 2021 and 2020 graduation ceremonies scheduled at the Angelo 
DiPaolo Memorial Stadium. COVID-19 protocols and other logistics surrounding attendee safety were 
discussed.  
 

AGENDA ITEM VI: 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Discussion and vote held on board signature of the Northwest Council of Governments Stronger 
Together Coalition Partnership Agreement and Letter of Support. 

 
Roll-Call Vote: 
 
Ralph Richards  Yes 
Becky Apel  Yes 
Priscilla Smith  -- 
Teri Garcia  Yes 
Edwin Begay  -- 

 
B. Discuss and vote on board advice to proceed with UNM Planning, Design & Construction Facility 

Assessment and Project Identification Concepts for Gurley Hall and Career Technical Education 
Upgrade in Place Scenarios with 2020 Capital Projects General Obligation Bond Act funding. 

 
Roll-Call Vote: 
 
Ralph Richards  Yes 
Becky Apel  Yes 
Priscilla Smith  -- 
Teri Garcia  Yes 
Edwin Begay  -- 

 
AGENDA ITEM VII: 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None  
 
VIII: PUBLIC COMMENTS NOT RELATED TO ITEMS ON AGENDA 
 
None 
 
IX: ADJOURN 



 

 
 

 705 Gurley Avenue l Gallup, New Mexico 87301  
gallup.unm.edu 

 
Chair Ralph Chairs made motion to adjourn, seconded by Teri Garcia and passed by unanimous rollcall vote 
2:15 p.m.  
 
 
_________________________________   _________________________________
    
Ralph Richards, Chair      Priscilla Smith, Secretary  
 
 
Lee Lamb, Sr. Public Relations  
Board Recording Secretary  
 
 
 



From: All Employee <ALL-EMPLOYEE-L@LIST.UNM.EDU> On Behalf Of Division of Human Resources 
Sent: Tuesday, May 25, 2021 11:04 AM 
To: ALL-EMPLOYEE-L@LIST.UNM.EDU 
Subject: [ALL-EMPLOYEE-L] Expiring Policies and Guidance under Limited Operations 
 
As the broader UNM main and branch campus communities begin planning for a full return to campus by 
Aug. 2 and HSC continues their on-site presence, Human Resources would like to remind you of the 
following policies and guidelines that will be coming to an end. Over the last year and a half, we worked 
hard to implement several programs to aid the university in getting through the pandemic. Now, as we 
look forward to a more “normal” fall, please note the items that will no longer be in effect. 

May 3 and 16 – Business Meal and Travel Restrictions for Main and Branch 
Campuses Lifted 
As of May 3, Main and Branch Campus employees may resume purchasing business meals or 
refreshments, without the formerly required written exception, for in-person gatherings such as 
meetings, conferences, luncheons and celebrations. These purchases shall follow UAP 4000, 
Section 5, and gatherings must comply with public health order restrictions. 

As of May 16, business travel may recommence with no restrictions. 
Resource: hr.unm.edu/cv19/travel-food-restrictions  

May 31 – Staff Temporary Voluntary Reduction in Appointment Percent 
Option Ends 
Staff employees who elected to reduce their appointment percent will return to their original 
appointment percent based on the date submitted and approved on their initial request. 
Employees who wish to maintain a reduced FTE should submit a new request via HR’s standard 
process for voluntary reductions in FTE.  
Resource: hr.unm.edu/cv19/tvr  

June 30 – Emergency Paid Leave Option Ends 
Although the two leave provisions (Emergency Paid Sick Leave and Emergency Family and 
Medical Leave Expansion Act) expired per U.S. Congress on Dec. 31, 2020, UNM chose to 
extend its own version of the Emergency Paid Sick Leave option through June 30, 2021. Effective 
July 1, employees will need to use their regular accrued leave for time away from work under 
University Administrative Policies 3400: Annual Leave and 3410: Sick Leave. 
Resource: hr.unm.edu/cv19/ffcra  

June 30 – Suspension of Main/Branch Campus Staff Hiring and Personnel 
Actions Ends 
As UNM grappled with the uncertainty of the budget over the last year we implemented a 
suspension on hiring and certain personnel actions. On July 1, this suspension for hiring of non-
critical positions is lifted along with the hold on certain personnel actions. Academic departments 
should refer to the memo received from the Office of the Provost on May 24 for additional 
guidance on processing of personnel actions.  
Resource: hr.unm.edu/docs/hr/vphr-message-regarding-suspension-of-hiring.pdf  

July 31 – Functional Operating Tier Tracking Ends 

https://policy.unm.edu/university-policies/4000/4000.html
https://policy.unm.edu/university-policies/4000/4000.html
https://hr.unm.edu/cv19/travel-food-restrictions
https://hr.unm.edu/cv19/tvr
https://policy.unm.edu/university-policies/3000/3400.html
https://policy.unm.edu/university-policies/3000/3410.html
https://hr.unm.edu/cv19/ffcra
https://provost.unm.edu/resources/update-on-hiring-pause-from-provost-5-25-2021.pdf
https://hr.unm.edu/docs/hr/vphr-message-regarding-suspension-of-hiring.pdf


At the start of UNM’s limited operations period we implemented operating tiers 1, 2 and 3. 
Divisions were tasked with tracking the tier their regular staff were working in. This tracking 
system is no longer in effect and divisions are not responsible for updating their work tier 
spreadsheets. 
Resource: hr.unm.edu/cv19/functional-operating-tiers  

July 31 – COVID-19 Remote Work Reimbursement Ends 
With many employees sent home to work as a precaution, UNM allowed for employees to request 
a monthly $40 reimbursement to cover expenses of personal resources used to conduct business 
(e.g., cell phones and home internet). This reimbursement program ends on July 31. After July 
31, Main Campus employees who require a cellular telephone in order to perform their duties 
may request reimbursement under UNM’s standard cell phone reimbursement program 
(https://ua.unm.edu/cell-phone-reimbursement-cr.html).  
Resource: hr.unm.edu/cv19/partial-reimbursement  

Dec. 31 – Increase to Maximum Annual Leave Accruals Ends 
2020 was a tough year and many employees stepped up above and beyond any normal critical 
situation to help our community get through those tough times. Many employees were unable to 
take time off and the fact that the travel industry was mostly non-existent didn’t help. Therefore, 
UNM enacted a temporary increase to its annual leave policy. Now, as we are approaching the 
end of the year, employees with high annual leave balances (those above 252 or nearing 252) 
should consider planning to take time off prior to the temporary increase ending on Dec. 31. Any 
annual leave balances exceeding 252 hours after December leave reporting is processed will be 
reduced to the normal maximum amount of 252, and employees will not be compensated or paid 
out for forfeited hours. 
Resource: hr.unm.edu/docs/hr/annual-leave-temporary-policy-allowance.pdf  

 

Thank you, UNM, for all you have done to help us get through the COVID-19 pandemic. We value our 
employees and hope that many of you found the programs enacted helpful.  

Thank you, also, to our leadership team – President Stokes and all the executive administrators have 
worked to make sure UNM was doing all it could to support its students, faculty, staff and the 
communities benefitting from our programs and services.    

We are excited for our next chapter of being able to function as a lively and vibrant campus very soon.  

If you have any questions about the programs listed above, please send us an email at 
clientsv@unm.edu and an HR Consultant will get back to you. 

Further, we are working on our return to campus guidance for August 2. To aid in this planning, we invite 
you to submit any ideas or considerations about our return using the UNM’s Return to Full Operations – 
Ideas for Return form. We are interested in what you have to say and how you think we can best open 
our campuses for our many different services and programs. 

Thank you. 

Human Resources 
505.277.6947 | hrinfo@unm.edu | hr.unm.edu  
 

https://hr.unm.edu/cv19/functional-operating-tiers
https://ua.unm.edu/cell-phone-reimbursement-cr.html
https://hr.unm.edu/cv19/partial-reimbursement
https://hr.unm.edu/docs/hr/annual-leave-temporary-policy-allowance.pdf
mailto:clientsv@unm.edu
https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/3ef8001a04d94322858ecf3d82f02aa2
https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/3ef8001a04d94322858ecf3d82f02aa2
mailto:hrinfo@unm.edu
https://hr.unm.edu/


Exhibit 1 - UNM GALLUP Campus 
Summary of Current and Plant Funds

Original Revised 

Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actuals 2021

PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Revenues Instruction and General 15,691,707 679,610 15,111,963 353,023 13,190,977.77 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 79,120 2,800 79,120 2,800 63,965.02 .00
Research Ex 16 0 63,000 0 125,000 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 12,773 1,008,620 12,773 1,614,000 148,601.19 .00
Student Aid Ex 19 0 0 0 0 21,985.86 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 1,224,303 0 1,024,303 0 460,543.73 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 17,007,903 1,754,030 16,228,159 2,094,823 13,886,073.57 .00
TOTAL Revenues 17,007,903 1,754,030 16,228,159 2,094,823 13,886,073.57 .00
Beginning Balance Instruction and General 6,795,805 0 8,206,307 0 7,800,041.00 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 109,500 0 121,748 0 121,747.81 .00
Public Service Ex 17 327,588 0 318,256 0 318,256.41 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 (2,012) 0 (12,936) 0 (12,936.36) .00
Student Aid Ex 19 237,144 0 281,882 0 281,882.07 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 44,972 0 193,212 0 193,212.45 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 7,512,997 0 9,108,469 0 8,702,203.38 .00
TOTAL Beginning Balance 7,512,997 0 9,108,469 0 8,702,203.38 .00
Total Available Instruction and General 22,487,512 679,610 23,318,270 353,023 20,991,018.77 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 188,620 2,800 200,868 2,800 185,712.83 .00
Research Ex 16 0 63,000 0 125,000 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 340,361 1,008,620 331,029 1,614,000 466,857.60 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 (2,012) 0 (12,936) 0 (12,936.36) .00
Student Aid Ex 19 237,144 0 281,882 0 303,867.93 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 1,269,275 0 1,217,515 0 653,756.18 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 24,520,900 1,754,030 25,336,628 2,094,823 22,588,276.95 .00
TOTAL Total Available 24,520,900 1,754,030 25,336,628 2,094,823 22,588,276.95 .00

Run on: 06/09/2021 



Exhibit 1 - UNM GALLUP Campus 
Summary of Current and Plant Funds

Original Revised 

Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actuals 2021

PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11 PERIOD 11

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Expenditures Instruction and General 15,068,372 679,610 14,700,472 353,023 11,922,182.38 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 79,120 2,800 79,120 2,800 4,442.75 .00
Research Ex 16 0 63,000 0 125,000 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 12,773 1,008,620 14,773 1,614,000 41,156.35 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 0 0 0 0 7,966.43 .00
Student Aid Ex 19 100,000 0 102,797 0 51,515.00 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 1,184,303 0 984,303 0 613,802.24 .00

Subtotal Current Funds 16,444,568 1,754,030 15,881,465 2,094,823 12,641,065.15 .00
TOTAL Expenditures 16,444,568 1,754,030 15,881,465 2,094,823 12,641,065.15 .00
Transfers Instruction and General (623,335) 0 (1,800,772) 0 (1,800,772.00) .00

Public Service Ex 17 0 0 2,000 0 2,000.00 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 0 0 12,937 0 12,937.00 .00
Student Aid Ex 19 100,000 0 102,797 0 102,097.09 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 (40,000) 0 (40,000) 0 (40,000.00) .00

Subtotal Current Funds (563,335) 0 (1,723,038) 0 (1,723,737.91) .00
TOTAL Transfers (563,335) 0 (1,723,038) 0 (1,723,737.91) .00
Ending Balance Instruction and General 6,795,805 0 6,817,026 0 7,268,064.39 .00

Student Social and Cultural Ex 15 109,500 0 121,748 0 181,270.08 .00
Research Ex 16 0 0 0 0 .00 .00
Public Service Ex 17 327,588 0 318,256 0 427,701.25 .00
Internal Services Ex 18 (2,012) 0 1 0 (7,965.79) .00
Student Aid Ex 19 237,144 0 281,882 0 354,450.02 .00
Auxiliaries Ex 20 44,972 0 193,212 0 (46.06) .00

Subtotal Current Funds 7,512,997 0 7,732,125 0 8,223,473.89 .00
TOTAL Ending Balance 7,512,997 0 7,732,125 0 8,223,473.89 .00
Total Expenditures, Transfers and 24,520,900 1,754,030 25,336,628 2,094,823 22,588,276.95 .00
Balances

Run on: 06/09/2021 







Page 1 of 1

Institution 
acronym

FY
23

 F
un

di
ng

 P
rio

rit
y 

#

O
ve

ra
ll F

un
di

ng
 P

rio
rit

y 
# Project Title Description

Year Project 
Funding will 

be 
requested

Month/Y
ear 

Project to 
be 

started

Month/Year 
Project to be 

completed Fu
ll P

ro
je

ct

Ph
as

e  Cost of Project or 
Phase 

 TOTAL Request 
from State GO

B

ST
B

O
th

er

Percent 
of GOB 
or STB

Percent of 
Other 

Funding 
Source

Description 
of Other 
Funding 
Source

N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

Re
no

va
tio

n

Square 
Footage 

(GSF)

UNM-G 1 1
Gurley Hall Student 
Experience Project

To improve and renovate Gurley Hall to support 
student experience and success with 

renovations, space reorganization, and campus 
improvements, including study areas, food 

service, and increased access to support 
programs.

2022 Jun-22 Oct-24 X  $         6,000,000 X X 75% 25%
Equity - 
Campus 

X       111,414 

UNM-G 2
Facility Repair and 

Renewal
Repair existing facilities to comply with ADA and 

safety codes
2023 Jul-23 Aug-24 X  $         1,875,000 X X 75% 25%

Equity - 
Campus 

X  N/A 

UNM-G 3
Facility Repair and 

Renewal

Repair  existing facilities and necessary upgrades 
to achieve peak energy efficiency and 

appropriate safe educational  environments that 
building Renewal and Repair isn’t enough to 

complete

2024 Jul-23 Aug-24 X  $         1,125,000 X X 75% 25%
Equity - 
Campus 

X  N/A 

                    New Mexico Department of Higher Education
2021 Summer Hearing - Five Year Capital Project Funding Plan 

INSTITUTION: The University of New Mexico - Gallup Campus DATE: 4/21/21



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION 
DEPARTMENT

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUNDING  
PROJECT EVALUATION FORM 

FISCAL YEAR 2023 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

Name of Institution: 

Location of Project: (Attach Aerial Map): 

Project Title: 

FY23 Priority #:    

Master Plan Priority #:  

Total Project Cost: $      

State Funding Request: $ 

Committed Match Funding: $ 

Specify Source of Committed Match funding, how funding was generated, and when it will be 
budgeted:  

If funding was requested in the past for this project, provide a brief summary to include when it 
was presented, amount of funding received and any changes from original request(s) (Cost, 
Scope, etc.):  



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

 
A. Project Description:  
 
Age of Facility:  
 
GSF of Facility:  
 
Provide a brief history and general description of the facility:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What is the current condition of the facility and supporting infrastructure?   
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What was the last major renovation completed? When was the renovation completed? What 
funding sources were used? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

Provide a detailed scope of work to be completed if the project is funded. Make sure to specify 
any deficiencies being remedied:  



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

 
Complete table below if this project request contains multiple projects or if the project can be 
phased. List in priority order:  

Phase/
Project 

# 

Phase/Project Description Amount 

   

   

   

   
   

 

Provide key milestone dates and project sequence or phasing:  
 
 

 
*

Phase/Project Start Date (mm/yyyy) Completion Date (mm/yyyy) 
   
   
   



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

 
Full-Time Student Enrollment Trends:  
Provide the instructional program majors being served by this project: 
 
 

 
Provide Fall Semester enrollment data per year as reported on the NMHED website/eDEAR:  
 

Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
FTE         

OFTE         
FTE-OFTE         

*OFTE = Online FTE/Distance Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

Major Title Head Count FTE % Growth 
from Last Year 

Avg. Growth 
last 10 years 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

 
B. Project Rationale and Need: 
 
Measure B1: Projects promotion of enrollment growth, retention, and degree production 
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
  
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure B2: Projects impact on education and workforce needs in local and regional 
economies    
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure B3: Projects support of HEI Strategic Plan or Facility Master Plan 
Demonstrate project alignment with institutional mission and how project advances the 
institution’s strategic or facility master plan.     
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* 

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure B4: Facilities Assessment 
Provide the facility’s most recent condition score and summarize the major structural and 
systems conditions that resulted in that score. Provide selected supporting documentation in 
appendices and reference them in the body of the proposal. 
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure B5: Projects impact on On–campus and Off-campus Instruction 
Provide information on how this project request will support both on-campus and off-campus 
instruction.   
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
C. Green Screen for Buildings 

  
Measure C1: Energy Audit or similar energy assessment  
Document details of the audit to include who performed the audit, when it was completed, 
level of audit/assessment, improvements proposed, and benefits to this project  
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure C2: Projects impact on Energy / Utility Cost Reduction 
Explain the impact of this project to the net energy / utility costs. Provide a justification if no 
operating budget impact is anticipated. 
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure C3: Executive Order (EO) 2019-003 
Provide detailed information on how this project will address the goal of reducing Green House 
Gas (GHG) emissions by 45% as called for in the EO. Explain the steps taken to reduce the 
buildings energy demands. 
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
D. Stewardship  

Detail how the HEI provides stewardship for its assets. 
 
Measure D1: Project Estimates 
Describe how this projects cost estimates were developed. Provide the total dollars attributed 
to inflation. Percentage increases MUST be defended in the narrative portion of the document, 
or 0% inflation will be assumed.  
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure D2: Describe how this project addresses/reduces deferred maintenance on campus 
 
Institution proposed score  
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For facilities, check the box that best describes how this project impacts or reduces the campus 
Facility Condition Index (FCI) (reduces deferred maintenance).  
  
___ The approximate restoration cost is 46– 60 percent of building replacement cost. 

(20 - points) 
 
___ The approximate restoration cost is 31–45 percent of building replacement cost. The 

physical conditions currently adversely affect building operations.  
(15 - points) 

 
___ The approximate restoration cost is 16–30 percent of building replacement cost. The 

physical conditions may have an effect upon building operations.  
(12 - points) 

 
___ The approximate cost of restoration is 5–15 percent of building replacement cost.  
 (7 - points) 
 
___ Renewal or replacement project cost is less than 5 percent of building replacement cost.  

(0 points) 
 
*

 

tabia1
Text Box
X



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure D3: Asset Stewardship 
Provide information on how the HEI supports the ongoing operational and maintenance needs 
of current and proposed assets.  
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

  
Measure D4: Maintenance Cost Reduction 
Describe in detail how this project will affect operating appropriations for the current year and 
all out-years. Provide a justification if no operating budget impact is anticipated. 
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

 
Measure D5: Health, safety, and security 
Describe how this project will address major health and safety issues/concerns on 
campus, including how it will improve physical safety and cybersecurity on campus. 
Provide selected supporting documentation and reference them in the body of the 
proposal. 
 
Institution proposed score   
(if an affiliated community college) ____ 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



New Mexico Higher Education Department 
Capital Outlay Funding – Project Evaluation Form 

 
Language for appropriation: Compose the legislative language that would best suit 
your project needs should the project be funded (Example: to plan, design, construct, 
and equip infrastructure improvements at John Doe College)  
 
  



F:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Bylaws\By Laws FINAL 1-4 Amendments 06.19.18 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS 
 
 

LOCAL BOARD 
 
 

BYLAWS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE UNM GALLUP LOCAL BOARD ON: 
April 30, 2003 

 
First Amendment Adopted & Included October 20, 2010 

Second Amendment Adopted & Included October 22, 2014 
Third Amendment Adopted & Included February 21, 2017 

Fourth Amendment Adopted & Included April 4, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 

                                        ,Chairperson ,Secretary  
 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 2 

ORGANIZATION 
 
 100 NAME 
 

These are the Bylaws for the UNM Gallup Campus Local Board; hereafter referred to as the 
Board. 

 

 110 MEMBERS 
 

The Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus of the University of New Mexico shall be 
composed of the five members elected by registered voters as follows:  Positions One and 
Two by voters of the McKinley County School service area, Positions Three and Four by the 
voters of the Zuni Public School service area and one (1) Position Five, by voters of McKinley 
County and Zuni Public Schools service areas. Elections shall be governed by New Mexico 
State Statue, Chapter 22, NMSA 1978.  
 

The Second Amendment Organization 110 Members dated October 22, 2014 hereby replaces the By-Laws 
Organization 110 Members. 
 
The Fourth Amendment dated April 4, 2017 hereby replaces the Second Amendment Organization 110 
Members. 
 

 120 ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

The Board shall elect a chairperson, a vice chairperson, and a secretary from among its 
members. The election shall be held at the regular March Board meeting.  

 
The term of office shall be for one year beginning immediately upon election and ending at 
the regular March Board meeting one year thereafter when successors have been duly 
elected.  

 
The Board may hold a special election to fill permanent officer vacancies. 

 
 

 130 LOCAL BOARD DUTIES 
 

The duties of the Board shall be as stipulated by the Operating Agreement (Attachment A) 
between the Gallup Local Board and the University of New Mexico Board of Regents, and by 
the Branch Community College Act, as amended.  

 

 140 BOARD COMMITTEES 
 

 140.1 Standing Committees 
 

No individual member and no group comprising less than a quorum of the Board shall be 
designated as a standing committee to perform any of the Board’s functions.   

 

 140.2 Temporary Committees 
 

With the consent of the Board, the chairperson shall appoint temporary committees 
comprising less than the full membership for special purposes.  These committees shall be 
discharged on the completion of their assignment.  The chairperson shall be an ex-officio 
member of any such committee.  The chairperson shall have the option of appointing 
community members for special committees with a consent of the majority of the Board.  



F:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Bylaws\By Laws FINAL 1-4 Amendments 06.19.18 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 3 

 140.3 Chief Executive Office’s Committees 
 
The Chief Executive Officer may form committees to assist him/her in acquiring specific 
technical knowledge in determining community response to current issues. The members of 
these committees will be appointed by the Chief Executive Officer and selected from persons 
possessing the desirable expertise. 
 
The input from these committees may be presented to the Local Board and may through the 
Chief Executive Officer and with the concurrence of the proper University administration be 
presented to the Board of Regents of the University of New Mexico.  If a committee report is 
taken to the Board of Regents, it must first be presented to the Local Board. 

 

 150 CENTER FOR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
(CCTE)  

 
The CCTE (formally the Area Vocational School) Executive Committee is made up of the 
following: UNM-G Chief Executive Officer, CCTE Principal, Chair of CCTE Steering 
Committee and Superintendents of: Gallup-McKinley County School District, Zuni Public 
School District, Rehoboth Christian School, and  Wingate High School (BIA).  This is the 
governing body of the CCTE and responsible for all policies therein.  A semester report, 
presented by the CCTE Steering Committee Chair, shall be made to the Board.  

 

 150.1 CCTE Steering Committee 
 
The CCTE Steering Committee is comprised of the counselors and administrators from the 
schools sending students to CCTE and the administrators from UNM-G. All are members by 
the invitation of the CCTE Executive Committee. The duty of the CCTE Steering Committee 
is to advise the CCTE Executive Committee as to policy changes, additions or deletions and 
act as a liaison between participating schools and the CCTE Administration. 

 

 160 & 160.1 Middle College High School Removed by First Amendment dated October 20, 2010. 
 
 

DUTIES OF MEMBERS AND AUXILIARY PERSONNEL 

 

 200 DUTIES OF THE CHAIRPERSON 
 
The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall appoint all committees 
unless otherwise directed by the Board. 
 
The chairperson shall have the right to discuss questions and to vote thereon. 
 
The chairperson shall sign for the Board and generally represent the Board at all times when 
it is not convened.  In this function, in the absence of official Board action, the chairperson 
may not make commitments which bind the Board.  The chairperson shall notify the 
convened Board at the next regular meeting of any such representations. 

 

 210 DUTIES OF THE VICE CHAIR 
 
The vice chair shall preside in the absence of the chairperson. 

 
 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 4 

220 DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY 
 
The Executive Assistant to the Chief Executive Officer of the UNM Gallup Campus shall act 
as the recording secretary. 
 
In the absence of the chairperson or secretary, another member of the Board shall act as 
signatory.  The elected secretary shall be the official board secretary. 

 

230 INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS 
 
Members of the Board have no individual authority, unless delegated by the Local Board. 

 
 

METHOD OF OPERATION 

 

 300 AMENDMENT AND REVIEW OF BYLAWS AND OPERATING AGREEMENT 
 

 300.1 Board Bylaws 
 
The Board’s Bylaws shall be reviewed annually at the summer retreat. 
 
Bylaws or amendments to the existing Bylaws of the Board shall be proposed at one Board 
meeting and voted on at the next regular meeting.  An affirmative vote by at least a simple 
majority of those members of the Board in attendance shall be necessary to adopt a bylaw or 
amendment.  A proposed bylaw or amendment may be further amended at the next meeting 
and may then be voted on at the same meeting. 

 

 300.2 REVIEW OF OPERATING AGREEMENT 
 
The Operating Agreement with the University of New Mexico Board of Regents shall be 
reviewed by all parties as deemed necessary, but at least biennially. 

 

 310 BOARD MEETINGS 
 
The Chief Executive Officer’s Office shall notify all Board members of Regular, Special, 
Information and Emergency meetings of the Board. 

 

 310.1 Open Meetings Act 
 
Section 10-15-1(B) of the Open Meetings Act (NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1 to 10-15-4) 
states that, except as may be otherwise provided in the constitution of the provisions of the 
Open Meetings Act, all meetings of the quorum of members of any board, council, 
commission or other policy-making body of any state or local public agency held for the 
purpose of formulating public policy, discussing public business or for the purpose of taking 
any action within the authority of or the delegated authority of such body, are declared to be 
public meetings open to the public at all times. 
 
Any meetings subject to the Open Meetings Act at which the discussion or adoption of any 
proposed resolution, rule, regulation or formal action occurs shall be held only after 
reasonable notice to the public. 
 
Section 10-15-1(D) of the Open Meetings Act requires the Board to determine annually what 
constitutes reasonable notice of its public meetings. 

 



F:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Bylaws\By Laws FINAL 1-4 Amendments 06.19.18 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 5 

 310.2 Regular Meetings 
 
The date and time of regular meetings will be established during the annual summer retreat 
or at the August meeting, or whenever a majority of the Board vote to change the existing 
date and time.  Meetings will be held on an alternating basis at the UNM Gallup Executive 
Conference Room and the UNM Gallup South Campus Conference Room unless otherwise 
announced.  The agenda for the regular meetings will be set up by the Chief Executive 
Officer and the chairperson and will be mailed to the Board no later than one week prior to 
the regular meeting. 
 

The Second Amendment dated October 22, 2014 hereby replaces the deleted portion of the above paragraph. 
 

The Third Amendment dated February 21, 2017 hereby replaces the Second Amendment. 
 

Background and resource material pertinent to agenda items shall be distributed to Board 
members through the Chief Executive Officer’s office and mailed to the Board no later than 
one week prior to the regular meeting. 
 

Agenda items may be added for discussion only at the beginning of a regular meeting by a 
majority vote of the Board members present. 
 

Regular meetings shall generally follow the standard parliamentary procedure of Robert’s 
Rules of Order, except when otherwise provided by these bylaws. 
 

Executive sessions may be called by the chairman of the Board when necessary. 
 

Fifteen minutes shall be allowed in each regular meeting agenda for public input.  
 

 310.3 Notice Requirements of Regular Meetings 
 

Based upon the meeting dates determined during the annual summer retreat or at the August 
Meeting, the Board shall review the Resolution Determining Reasonable Notice of Public 
Meetings of the UNM Gallup Local Board at the August or September meeting and determine 
whether any amendments are warranted. The Resolution shall be published annually listing 
the dates, time and location of monthly meetings.  Monthly meeting agendas shall be given to 
the news media in the College District for publication at least seventy-two (72) hours in 
advance of the meeting.  A list of the agenda items shall be posted in a conspicuous place in 
the Chief Executive Officer’s office no later than seventy-two (72) hours before the regular 
meeting.  If a meeting date or location is changed from the annual published schedule, notice 
will be given to the media for legal ad publication at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting.   

 
NMSA 1978, 10-15-1(F).1 changed to 72 hour notice from 24 hour notice reflect a legislative amendment 
enacted in 2013 that requires a public body to make the agenda of a regular or special meeting available to 
the public at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting and to post meeting agendas on a public body’s website 
if one is maintained. 

 
Notices will be sent to all federally licensed broadcast stations and newspapers of general 
circulation in McKinley County that request in writing to receive copies of Board notices. 

 

 310.4 Special Meetings 
 

Special meetings may be called at any time by the chairperson or by written request of any 
three (3) members of the Board, or by the Chief Executive Officer.  An attempt shall be made 
to notify each Board member at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance. 
 
For any such meeting, notice of the date, time and place shall be given to the news media for 
publication at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of the meeting.  A list of the agenda 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 6 

items shall be posted in the Chief Executive Officer’s Office. Special meetings shall be 
conducted according to the bylaws governing regular meetings, where applicable, and each 
meeting shall have an announced agenda. 

 
NMSA 1978, 10-15-1(F).1 changed to 72 hour notice from 24 hour notice reflect a legislative amendment 
enacted in 2013 that requires a public body to make the agenda of a regular or special meeting available to 
the public at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting and to post meeting agendas on a public body’s website 
if one is maintained. 
 

 310.5 Emergency Meetings 
 

Emergency meetings will be called only under circumstances which demand immediate 
action.  The governing Board shall avoid emergency meetings whenever possible.  
Emergency meetings may be called by the Chairperson or by any three (3) board members 
upon twenty-four (24) hour notice, unless threat of personal injury or property damage 
requires less notice.  For any such meeting, an attempt shall be made to notify each Board 
member at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance. 
 

Notice of the date, time and place of the Emergency meeting shall be given to the news 
media for publication at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance unless the threat of personal 
injury or loss or damage to property makes that impossible in which case notice will be given 
as soon as possible. The general subject matter of the meeting shall also be given. 
 

Emergency meetings need not have an agenda; however, the general subject matter of such 
meetings should be announced. 
 

Emergency meetings shall be conducted according to the bylaws governing regular 
meetings, were applicable. 

 

 310.6 Information Meetings 
 

Information meetings may be called by the Chief Executive Officer or any Board member. 
 

For such meetings, an attempt shall be made to notify each Board member at least seventy-
two (72) hours in advance.  
 

No official action by the Board may be taken, and a quorum need not be present to conduct 
such a meeting.  

 

 310.7 Executive Sessions 
 

The governing Board may close a meeting to the public only if the subject matter of such 
discussion or action is exempted from the open meeting requirement under Section 10-15-
1(E) of the Open Meetings Act. 
 

If any meeting is closed during an open meeting, such closure shall be approved by the 
majority vote of the quorum of the governing board taken during the open meeting.  The 
authority for the closure and the subjects to be discussed shall be stated in the motion for 
closure and the vote on closure of each individual member shall be recorded in the minutes.  
Only those subjects specified in the motion may be discussed in a closed meeting. 
 

If the decision to hold a closed session is made when the governing board is not in an open 
meeting, the closed meeting shall not be held until public notice, appropriate under the 
circumstances and stating the specific provision of law authorizing the closed meeting and 
the subject to be discussed is given to the members and the general public. 
 



F:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Bylaws\By Laws FINAL 1-4 Amendments 06.19.18 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 7 

Except as provided in Section 10-15-1(E), any action taken as a result of discussion in a 
closed meeting shall be made by vote of the governing board at an open public meeting. 

 

 310.8 Quorum 
 

Three (3) Board members, meeting at a designated time and place, shall constitute a quorum 
for the purpose of conducting business.  All action, motions, and decisions by the Board must 
be made by a majority vote of those present. 
 

The only business that can be conducted in the absence of a quorum is to take measures to 
obtain a quorum, fix a time of adjournment, take a recess, or hold an information meeting. 

 

 310.9 Procedures For Making Reports and Recommendations to the Board  
 

Reports, recommendations or requests for the Board may be submitted by any person.  Such 
reports, recommendation or requests must be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer’s 
office allowing sufficient time for copies to be submitted to individual Board members for 
study.  Such material should be submitted at least ten (10) days in advance of a regular 
meeting. 

 

 310.10 Adequate Information to Precede Action 
 
At any meeting, the Board shall defer action on any questions for which the Board determines 
insufficient information exists until such time as adequate information is furnished. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer may be requested to examine and evaluate information and 
recommend action before the Board makes a decision. 

 

 310.12 Minutes 
 

Minutes shall be kept of all Board meetings except meetings or portions of meetings closed 
pursuant to the New Mexico Open Meetings Act. 
 
Draft minutes shall be prepared within ten (10) working days after any meeting. 
 
Minutes shall not become official until approved by the Board and signed by the chairperson 
and elected secretary. 
 
Minutes shall record the dates, time and place of the meeting, the names of Board members 
in attendance and those absent; a statement of what proposals were considered; and a 
record of any decisions made by the Board and of how each member voted at each vote.  
 
All minutes, once official, shall be open to public inspection. 

 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 8 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL BOARD 
 
 
 

The Bylaws of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby amended 
pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 

1. Section 160 – Middle College High School (MCHS) is deleted in its entirety. 
 
2. Section 161.1 – MCHS Governing Council is deleted in its entirety. 

 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus, 
certify the foregoing First Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local Board at a 
regular meeting of the Local Board held on October 20, 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Virginia R. Chavez, Chair      June Shack, Secretary 
 
 



F:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Bylaws\By Laws FINAL 1-4 Amendments 06.19.18 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 9 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
  

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL BOARD 
 
 
The Bylaws of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby amended 
pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 

ORGANIZATION 
 

110 MEMBERS 
The Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus of the University of New Mexico shall 
be composed of the five members elected by registered voters as follows:  Positions 
One and Two by voters of the McKinley County School service area, Position Three 
by the voters of the Zuni Public School service area and Position Four and Five, by 
voters of McKinley County and Zuni Public Schools service areas. 
 

The Fourth Amendment dated April 4, 2017 Organization 110 Members hereby replaces the Second 
Amendment. 

 

METHOD OF OPERATION 
 

310.2 Regular Meetings 
Meetings will be held at the UNM Gallup Chief Executive Officer’s Conference Room 
and once each semester at the UNM Gallup South Campus Conference Room 
unless otherwise announced.   
 

The Third Amendment dated February 21, 2017 Method of Operation hereby cancels the Second 
Amendment to the Bylaws. 

 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus, 
certify the foregoing Second Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local Board 
at a regular meeting of the Local Board held on October 22, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Ralph Richards, Vice Chair    Virginia R. Chavez, Secretary 
 



  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 10 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL BOARD 
 
 
The Bylaws of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby amended 
pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 
 

METHOD OF OPERATION 
 

310.2 Regular Meetings 
Meetings will be held at the UNM Gallup Executive Conference Room unless 
otherwise announced. 

 
 
The Third Amendment Method of Operation hereby cancels the Second Amendment dated 
October 22, 2014 to the Bylaws. 
 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus, 
certify the foregoing Third Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local Board at a 
regular meeting of the Local Board held on February 21, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Ralph Richards, Chair    Priscilla Smith, Secretary 



F:\CORRESPONDENCE\Meetings\Local Board\Bylaws\By Laws FINAL 1-4 Amendments 06.19.18 Update.Doc  
UNM Gallup Local Board Bylaw s Page 11 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS 
 

OF  
 

UNM GALLUP CAMPUS LOCAL BOARD 
 
 
The Bylaws of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus (“Bylaws”) are hereby amended 
pursuant to Section 300 of the Bylaws as follows: 
 

ORGANIZATION 
 

 110 MEMBERS 
 

The Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus of the University of New Mexico 
shall be composed of the five members elected by registered voters as 
follows:  Positions One, Two and Three by voters of the McKinley County 
School service area, and Positions Four and Five, by voters of McKinley 
County and Zuni Public Schools service areas. 

 
The Fourth Amendment Organization hereby cancels the Second Amendment dated 
October 22, 2014 to the Bylaws. 
 
All other provisions of the Bylaws are hereby affirmed and remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 

Officer’s Certificate 
 

We, the undersigned Chair and Secretary of the Local Board of the UNM Gallup Campus, 
certify the foregoing Fourth Amendment to Bylaws was duly adopted by the Local Board at 
a regular meeting of the Local Board held on April 4, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

Ralph Richards, Chair     Priscilla Smith, Secretary 
 













2020-2021 Open Meetings Resolution  Page 1 

OPEN MEETINGS RESOLUTION  
OF THE 

UNM - GALLUP LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 

WHEREAS, the UNM Gallup Local Board is a duly constituted policy making body in accordance with 
NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1 through 10-15-4, inclusive, as amended and supplemented; and  

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1.C provides that certain public meetings of certain public 
policy making bodies shall be held only after reasonable notice to the public and that the public policy making 
body shall determine at least annually in a public meeting what notice for a public meeting is reasonable; and 

WHEREAS, the intention of the Resolution is to determine what notice of a public meeting shall be 
reasonable when applied to meetings of the Board as required by Section 10-15-1.C NMSA 1978; and  

 WHEREAS, notice of the meeting of the UNM Gallup Local Board on June 23, 2020has been given at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the time of the public meeting at which this Resolution is to be adopted by 
posting in conspicuous place in the UNM Gallup Administration Office and on the UNM Gallup Local Advisory 
Board website https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the UNM Gallup Local Board that: 

1. Reasonable notice was given to the public of the Board Meeting held June 23, 2020.

2. Reasonable notice to the public of any meetings of the Board or any meetings of a committee constituting
a quorum of the Board shall consist of:

A. As to regular meetings of the Board, this notice shall be posted annually listing the dates, time
and location of meetings.  Meeting agendas shall be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory
Board website https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ at least seventy-two (72)
hours in advance of the meeting.  A list of the agenda items shall also be posted in a conspicuous 
place in the UNM Gallup Administrative Office no later than seventy-two (72) hours before the
regular meeting.

B. Unless otherwise indicated, meetings of the UNM Gallup Local Board shall be held at 1:00 p.m.
on the following dates and location at:  UNM Gallup Campus, Executive Conference Room
GH1216, 705 Gurley Ave., Gallup, NM.

August 25 February 16 
September 15 March 23 
October 20 April 20 
November 17 May 25 
January 19 June 15 

C. As to special meetings of the Board, which may be called at any time by the Chair of the Board or
by written request of three members, therefore, notice of the date, time and place of special
meetings of the Board shall be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory website
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ for publication at least seventy-two (72)
hours in advance of the meeting.  A list of the agenda items shall also be given.

D. As to the emergency meetings of the Board, notice of the date, time and place of emergency
meetings shall be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board website
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ or emailed at least twenty-four (24) hours 
in advance of the meeting, unless threat of personal injury or property damage requires less
notice. The general subject matter of the meeting shall also be given.



2020-2021 Open Meetings Resolution  Page 2 

E. Additional notices: notice of special and emergency meetings shall also be posted in a
conspicuous place in the UNM Gallup Administration Office at the same time notice is posted to
the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board website
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/.

Notice of the information meetings shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the UNM Gallup
Administration Office at the same time Board members are informed of such meetings.  Notices
will be posted to the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board website
https://www.gallup.unm.edu/administration/localboard/ and sent to all federally licensed broadcast 
stations and newspapers of general circulation in McKinley County that request in writing to
receive copies of Board meeting notices.

The Board shall review these notice requirements annually at the last scheduled regular
meeting of the fiscal year and determine whether any amendments are warranted.

As used in the resolution, news media shall mean the Gallup Independent or any newspaper of
general circulation throughout McKinley County, or any radio or television station which regularly 
broadcasts news throughout McKinley County.  Notice shall mean notice in person, by telephone
or written notice to the general manager or other radio or television station employee generally
responsible for accepting public service announcements or to the news clerk of any newspaper of
general circulation throughout McKinley County.

3. The foregoing determination shall be applicable to the Board Meeting held on this 23rd day of June 2020,
and all meetings held after June 23, 2020 until June 2021

4. Pursuant to Section 10-15-1(C) of the Open Meetings Act, any member of the UNM Gallup Local Advisory
Board may participate in a meeting of the Local Advisory Board of the Gallup Campus, by means of a
conference telephone or other similar communications equipment when it is otherwise difficult or
impossible for the members to attend the meeting in person, provided that each member participating by 
conference telephone can be identified when speaking, all participants are able to hear each other at the
same time, and members of the public attending the meeting are able to hear any member of the Local
Advisory Board of the Gallup Campus who speaks during the meeting.

5. In addition to the information specified above, all notices shall include the following language:
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the meeting, please
contact the Chief Executive Officer’s Office (505) 863-7501 at least one week prior to the meeting or as
soon as possible.  Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various
accessible formats.  Please contact the Chief Executive Officer’s Office if a summary or other type of
accessible format is needed.

6. The UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board may close a meeting to the public only if the subject matter of such 
discussion or action is exempted from the open meeting requirement under Section 10-15-1(H) of the
Open Meetings Act.

A. If any meeting is closed during an open meeting, such closure shall be approved by a majority
vote of the quorum of the UNM Gallup Local Advisory Board taken during the open meeting.  The 
authority for the closure and the subjects to be discussed shall be stated in the motion for closure
and the vote on closure of each individual member shall be recorded in the minutes.  Only those
subjects specified in the motion may be discussed in a closed meeting; and

B. If the decision to hold a closed meeting is made when the UNM Local Advisory Board is not in
open meeting, the closed meeting shall not be held until public notice, appropriate under the
circumstances and stating the specific provision of law authorizing the closed meeting and the
subjects to be discussed, is given to the members and to the general public; and



https://unmm-my.sharepoint.com/personal/cbutler1_unm_edu/Documents/A CORRESPONDENCE/CORRESPONDENCE/Meetings/Local Board/Resolutions/Open Mtg Resolution/Resolution 2020-2021 3with 
seal.doc 
2020-2021 Open Meetings Resolution  Page 3 

C. Except as provided in Section 10-15-1(E), any action taken as a result of discussion in a closed
meeting shall be made by vote of the UNM Gallup Local Board in an open public meeting.

PASSED by the UNM Gallup Local Board, this    23rd    day of    June   , 2020. 

Ralph Richards, Chair 

ATTEST: 

Priscilla Smith, Secretary 



LOCAL BOARD CODE OF ETHICS 
 

The citizens in my community have elected me to represent them. As a member of the UNMG Local Board, I will strive 
to improve higher education for all UNMG students and to that end, I will: 

 
1. Attend all scheduled Board meetings insofar as possible and will come to each meeting prepared and ready to 

debate issues fully and openly; 
 

2. Recognize that I have no legal authority outside the Board meetings and that all decisions of the Board will be 
made at a public meeting; to conduct my relationships with the community college staff, the local citizenry, and 
all media of the community on the basis of this fact; remember that the board derives its authority from the 
community; and that it must always act as an advocate on behalf of the entire community; 

 
3. Work in harmony with my fellow members of the Board to always promote cooperation in spite of differences of 

opinion that arise during vigorous debates of points of issue and preserve the integrity of the Board; 
 

4. Avoid speaking on behalf of the Board except at those times when the Board, by official action, authorizes me 
to do so, and respect the confidentiality of information that is privileged under applicable law; 

 
5. Upgrade my performance as a Board member by informing myself about current educational issues by 

individual study and through participation in programs provided by the State and National Community College 
Trustees Associations, and by engaging in a regular and ongoing process of training and continuous 
improvement; 

 
6. Support the employment of those persons best qualified to serve as school faculty and staff and make every 

effort to ascertain that all employees are properly remunerated for their services and that they are dealt with 
fairly in the performance of their duties; 

 
7. Avoid temptation and outside pressure to use my position as a community college board member to benefit 

myself or any other individual or agency apart from the total interest of the community college district; 
 

8. Accept that my primary function is to oversee the policies by which UNMG is administered; and that the actual 
administration of the education programs is delegated to the Executive Director and her/his staff while creating 
and maintaining a spirit of true cooperation and a mutually supportive relationship with the Executive Director; 

 
9. Welcome and encourage active participation and cooperation by citizens, organizations, and the media with 

respect to current college operations and proposed future developments, for a better understanding of their 
needs and improvement of relations with the public that I serve; 

 
10. Remember that it is as important for the board to understand and evaluate the educational program of the 

community college as it is to plan for the business of college operation; 
 

11. Bear in mind that once a decision is made that the board speaks with one voice. 
 

12. Finally, strive step by step toward ideal conditions for the most effective community college board service to my 
community, in a spirit of teamwork and devotion to public education as the greatest instrument for the 
preservation and the perpetuation of our representative democracy. 

 
PASSED by the UNM Gallup Local Board, this _______ day of _______, _______. 

 
 
 

 
 

Chair 
 
 

Secretary 
 
 

Member 

 Vice Chair 
 
 
 

Member 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  


	UNMG-BOARD PACKET COVER-JUNE 15 2021
	UNMG-LAB BOARD- AGENDA - 6.15.2021-FINAL-REV
	UNMG-LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES-APRIL 20, 2021 MTG
	Expiring Policies and Guidance under Limited Operations
	UNM GALLUP Campus Summary of Current and Plant Funds Report 2021 Period 11
	UNM-G-WAR_Summer2021_6.14.2021
	UNM-G-WAR_Fall2021_6.14.2021
	03_-_Five-Year Plan_UNM-Gallup (003)
	02_-_Project_Evaluation_Form_UNMG-1-Gurley_v3
	Untitled

	LocalBoardByLaws
	LB-Operating-Agreement-signed
	OPEN MEETINGS RESOLUTION
	LAB-CodeOfEthics
	LABmembersOfficerVote

	Name of Institution: University of New Mexico, Gallup Branch
	Map: Gallup, New Mexico (McKinley County)
	e: Gurley Hall Student Experience Project
	ority: 1
	ty: 1
	Project Cost: 8,000,000
	ng Request: 6,000,000
	Committed Match Funding: 2,000,000
	budgeted: 25% Local Funding from Institutional Reserves
	Scope etc: 
	Age of Facility: Gurley Hall was built in phases with multiple additions between 1975 and 1983. 
	ty_2:  111,414 gsf
	Provide a br: Gurley Hall serves as the front door to UNM - Gallup. Within and adjacent to its main lobby are the book store, food service area, campus police department, mail room, a student art gallery, the administrative office wing, and student programs, including the Federal TRIO Program that provides economically disadvantaged students with support services. UNM - Gallup hosts a few large events in the lobby every year, most notable is the Christmas program that holds 1,000+ and a career fair for students. Several corridors stem from the lobby to the NW administrative office wing and to the SE wing with information technology and lecture rooms.A second floor mezanine wraps three sides of the main lobby and would benefit from more transparency and natural light. The Center for Academic Learning is located on this floor.The Gurley Hall basement has classrooms and some larger areas designed for student interaction but the spaces do not have daylight and are secluded from lobby activities.
	What: Many spaces have served different functions over time and have been modified to accommodate change of programs and services. As a result the location and proximity of programs are no longer ideal and the use of space is not the most conducive to foster student success. Gurley Hall's systems and supporting infrastructure are dated. According to Sightlines facility assessment in 2019, Gurley Hall  requires $13,596,000 in repair and maintenance costs in the 10-year horizon:» Cooling Repair/Maintenance costs (generation and building distribution): $111,000» Electrical Repair/Maintenance costs (secondary service, building distribution, and fixtures): $900,000» Exterior Shell Repair/Maintenance costs (roof, exterior painting, gutters/leaders, openings, and structural): $1,966,000» Grounds Repair/Maintenance costs (masonry structures): $17,000» Heating Repair/Maintenance costs (generation and building distribution): $985,000» HVAC Repair/Maintenance costs (ventilation, controls, air handling, end use, and building distribution): $5,809,000» Interior Shell Repair/Maintenance costs (floors, ceilings, walls, and signage): $1,604,000» Mechanical Repair/Maintenance costs (specialty equipment and vertical systems): $90,000» Plumbing Repair/Maintenance costs (DHW generation, supply piping, waste piping and bathroom renovations): $1,012,000» Safety/Code Repair/Maintenance costs (fire protection/egress and accessibility): $199,000The repair/maintenance needs in the career education wing will be addressed using the $3 million of legislative funding to renovate the career technology program spaces, including HVAC, bathrooms, ceilings, exterior doors and stairs, grounds' wall, electrical, mechanical and cooling system repairs.
	funding sources were used: In 2014, UNM Main Campus ITS Department upgraded the campus telecommunications system. Site upgrades included replacement of all copper cable, installation of new fiber-optic cable, and renovation of the IT center and equipment in Gurley Hall.
	any deficienc: The design objectives of the renovations inside and outside of Gurley Hall are to improve the use of space, the quality of  space, and proximity of spaces by increasing natural light. These improvements will create spaces for students to study, gather, and eat, and improve the student experience in accessing all the services UNM - Gallup offers.Interior renovations will include:» Interior shell repairs (floors, ceilings, walls, and signage)  and HVAC, cooling, heating, electrical, and plumbing system repairs identified in the facility assessment in 2019.» Adding a learning stair and bridge in the main lobby that provides gathering spaces for students, faculty, and staff and improves connections between student services and administrative offices.» Adding a stair connection between the basement and the first floor that lets natural light into the basement and makes existing space more usable.» Adding break-out spaces for students along the southeast side of the main lobby and below the new learning stair.» Replacing railings on the second story and dropped ceiling to allow more natural light in.» Renovating the southwest side of the second floor, including adding new windows to the main entry facade to provide a more welcoming student-oriented collaborative space.» Renovating the cramped food service area (Academy Kitchen) with new skylights, an expanded kitchen layout, equipment upgrades, and seating areas.» Assessment and potential relocation of programs in Gurley Hall to ensure space is optimized and programs are located in proximity to each other so they benefit students optimally. Exterior renovations will include:» Exterior shell and grounds repairs (doors, windows, skylights, and grounds' wall, and structural) identified in the facility assessment in 2019.» Improving circulation and wayfinding at Gurley Hall entrance to facilitate access and safety.» Construction of a shade structure that connects Gurley Hall to financial aid and other student services.
	Phase Pro j ect Row1: 1
	PhaseProject DescriptionRow1: Programming, Space Assessment, and Lobby
	AmountRow1: 4,500,000
	Phase Pro j ect Row2: 2
	PhaseProject DescriptionRow2: Gurley Hall Services and Program Renovations
	AmountRow2: 3,500,000
	Phase Pro j ect Row3: 3
	PhaseProject DescriptionRow3: 
	AmountRow3: 
	Phase Pro j ect Row4: 4
	PhaseProject DescriptionRow4: 
	AmountRow4: 
	Phase Pro j ect Row5: 
	PhaseProject DescriptionRow5: 
	AmountRow5: 
	PhaseProjectRow1: 1
	Start Date mmyyyyRow1: 05/01/2022
	Completion Date mmyyyyRow1: 07/30/2023
	PhaseProjectRow2: 2
	Start Date mmyyyyRow2: 05/02/2023
	Completion Date mmyyyyRow2: 07/30/2024
	PhaseProjectRow3: 
	Start Date mmyyyyRow3: 
	Completion Date mmyyyyRow3: 
	Major T i tleRow1: All Majors
	Head CountRow1: 2,332
	FTERow1: 1,190
	 Growth from Last YearRow1: -17%
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow1: -37%
	Major T i tleRow2: 
	Head CountRow2: 
	FTERow2: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow2: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow2: 
	Major T i tleRow3: 
	Head CountRow3: 
	FTERow3: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow3: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow3: 
	Major T i tleRow4: 
	Head CountRow4: 
	FTERow4: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow4: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow4: 
	Major T i tleRow5: 
	Head CountRow5: 
	FTERow5: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow5: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow5: 
	Major T i tleRow6: 
	Head CountRow6: 
	FTERow6: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow6: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow6: 
	Major T i tleRow7: 
	Head CountRow7: 
	FTERow7: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow7: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow7: 
	Major T i tleRow8: 
	Head CountRow8: 
	FTERow8: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow8: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow8: 
	Major T i tleRow9: 
	Head CountRow9: 
	FTERow9: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow9: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow9: 
	Major T i tleRow10: 
	Head CountRow10: 
	FTERow10: 
	 Growth from Last YearRow10: 
	Avg Growth l ast 10 yearsRow10: 
	2013FTE: 1,737
	2014FTE: 1,600
	2015FTE: 1,651
	2016FTE: 1,632
	2017FTE: 1,355
	2018FTE: 1,329
	2019FTE: 1,445
	2020FTE: 1,190
	2013OFTE: 43
	2014OFTE: 55
	2015OFTE: 42
	2016OFTE: 42
	2017OFTE: 86
	2018OFTE: 133
	2019OFTE: 276
	2020OFTE: 470
	2013FTEOFTE: 1,694
	2014FTEOFTE: 1,545
	2015FTEOFTE: 1,545
	2016FTEOFTE: 1,590
	2017FTEOFTE: 1,270
	2018FTEOFTE: 1,196
	2019FTEOFTE: 1,169
	2020FTEOFTE: 720
	ated community college: 
	undefined: This project will transform dated Gurley Hall into a safe and welcoming space to aid student success. It is critical in UNM - Gallup's attraction and retention of students, and can motivate students to graduate. Gurley Hall is the front door to campus; this renovation will provide formal and informal spaces for students to study, gather, eat, and get assistance. It will  provide students with access to administrative assistance, comfortable and safe places to study, work on group projects, and meet faculty and other students. UNM - Gallup's student support offices are actively engaged in connecting students to services and resources necessary for success. A formal early-alert system has been established and allows faculty to submit reports of students who are struggling academically, or with whom faculty are concerned. Requests for notices are sent to faculty at specific intervals throughout each term, and the system also remains open for report submission at any time. Student Success personnel have identified caseloads and actively engage with students when reports are received and throughout the term. Enrollment services reaches out to students regarding registration and academic status to promote continued enrollment, and financial aid issues numerous scholarships, including thousands of dollars in institutional aid via endowments each term. Students have access to the UNM degree audit system directly and can track their progress toward degree completion; this tracking is also done internally by Student Success personnel, who work with students to develop personalized academic plans, course sequencing, and prospective graduation terms. UNM - Gallup also has an annual published health and safety report called the Clery Report. It provides general information, stats on safety and crime incidents, and policy, planning, and informational items regarding report submission and how campus safety is addressed by the campus Police Department.
	ated community college_2: 
	undefined_2: This project will directly affect students' success, graduation rates, and increase students' potential as future members of the workforce because it will provide:» quality new spaces where students can study, work in groups, gather with peers, eat between classes, and meet with faculty;» access support services more easily, including tutoring, IT, and administrative offices; and» generally feel supported in their pursuit of higher education. Student success at maneuvering higher education, graduating, and becoming part of the local and regional workforce is directly affected by the ease in which students can access the support services offered in Gurley Hall. UNM - Gallup is located in a historically economically depressed area.  Our student population is almost entirely made up of minorities and economically challenged families coming from rural counties. An educated and well-trained workforce is necessary for economic development in the region. UNM - Gallup's programs are geared toward producing a workforce in industries that are in need of qualified employees and that support the region's needs and economy, such as nursing, EMT, welding, and construction.
	f an affiliated community college: 
	undefined_3: A Facilities Master Plan was developed by UNM - Gallup and UNM's Planning, Design & Construction division with Architectural Research Consultants, Inc. in 2015. The plan identifies specific and general needs anticipated from 2016 to 2025, including:"UNM - Gallup will focus on capital improvements that:» Improve the quality of instructional space to best align with program needs» Support renewal of existing building systems and infrastructure"One of UNM - Gallup's core values is described as: "We value ACCESS WITH SUPPORT TO SUCCEED by offering all who desire the opportunity to take full advantage of the wealth of UNM - Gallup resources and be fully included in the UNM - Gallup community."The following specific recommendations were made regarding Gurley Hall:"Study, design, and renovate instructional space for program needs. Consider renovating spaces in Gurley Hall and Career Education for educational program needs.""Users cite that the parking area in front of Gurley Hall is limited and awkwardly configured. Vehicular circulation and parking in front of Gurley is confusing for drivers. Consider modifying the parking layout, circulation, and/or signage. Improve vehicular entry to main campus at Gurley Hall and provide entry plaza with pedestrian drop-off to address safety issues.""Replace worn flooring in Gurley Hall...and some damaged and stained acoustical ceiling tiles." "Some restrooms have been recently renovated, but others require renovation to replace old fixtures and finishes and to meet ADA requirements. The basement men's restroom has line of sight issues.""Replace older, worn interior finishes, chalkboards, and light fixtures in Gurley Hall. Replace older light fixtures with new fixtures for energy efficiency and improved color rendition. The cosmetology hair dryers trip electrical breakers. Classrooms in the basement lack natural light.""It is recommended to upgrade and replace electrical distribution equipment in the older buildings as funds become available. Gurley Hall is identified as one of the buildings in need."It is reported by maintenance staff that the kitchen is always warm in Gurley Hall. The exhaust hood does not seem tohave the capability to remove the heat from the kitchen. Maintenance has been called to service the short circuit hood,exhaust and evaporative cooler make-up air unit several times. There has been no resolution.""In review of the existing primary electrical distribution system, there are several options that are recommended,based upon time frame, construction cost, budget constraints, and phasing." The plan recommends a dual radial primary selective and distribution system in Gurley Hall.UNM - Gallup also has a Strategic Plan, which identifies one of its 6 goals as: "Enhance Student Academic Experience» Institute a Student Life Function with full range of activities and services"The Gurley Hall Student Experience Project will implement these goals, values, and specific recommendations.
	f an affiliated community college_2: 
	undefined_5: Gurley Hall received a NAV score of 75% in the Gallup Branch Campus Facility Condition Assessment that was conducted in August 2019. Necessary system repair and maintenance improvements that led to this score include (from highest to lowest): » HVAC ($5,809,000)» Exterior Shell ($1,966,000)» Electrical ($1,803,000)» Interior Shell ($1,604,000)» Plumbing ($1,012,000)» Heatings ($985,000)» Safety/Code ($199,000)» Cooling ($111,000)» Mechanical ($90,000)» Grounds ($17,000)
	f an affiliated community college_3: 
	undefined_7: The renovations to Gurley Hall will include technology and equipment that aid students in participating both in-person and online classes, tutoring, faculty office hours, and study sessions. The renovated spaces will provide the A/V and wifi so  students who are logging in virtually from off-campus locations can engage with students who are in Gurley Hall. This is important beyond COVID-19 requirements because as a branch campus, UNM - Gallup's students cannot always travel to campus to participate in all learning opportunities. 
	f an affiliated community college_4: 
	undefined_9: UNM - Gallup capital projects will meet State of New Mexico Executive Order 2006-001. The Gurley Hall Student Experience Project will meet or exceed LEED Silver v. 4 certification.  Project goals are to further reduce UNM energy consumption, including energy efficient lighting and equipment and building control systems, insulated and high reflective roofing, use of natural day lighting, and low water usage plumbing fixtures. Additionally, the upgrades will be designed/built to utilize low VOC and natural materials, recycle excess materials, and use new materials with recycled content.UNM has demonstrated its commitment to integrating sustainability into all aspects of decision making on campus and construction projects. The University is an active member of the Association for the Advancement of Sustainability in Higher Education and the American College and University President’s Climate Commitment. UNM implemented a 2030 carbon neutral Climate Action Plan in 2009 and completed Climate Action plans for all campuses. The University has three policies that address sustainability: Policy 2100: Sustainability, Policy 5100: Energy Management, and Policy 6350: Recycling Materials. Lobo Energy, Inc. reports that energy use on UNM’s district energy system has been reduced by 21.6% since 2008 with five year reductions increasing to 24.2%. Renovation of Gurley Hall advances UNM’s carbon neutral strategy to rehabilitate obsolete energy wasting facilities in planned building renewal projects to reach 2030 carbon foot print reductions identified in the sustainability master plan.
	f an affiliated community college_5: 
	undefined_11: The existing Gurley Hall building and additions were built in the 1970s and 1980s. The renovations recommended in this project will greatly enhance energy efficiency and reduce utility costs through the use of energy-efficient lighting, electrical, mechanical, and cooling/heating system upgrades. Every effort will be made to accomplish energy efficient renovations. 
	f an affiliated community college_6: 
	undefined_13: Upgrading to highly efficient building systems, including heating, cooling, electrical, and mechanical and redesigning the building to take advantage of natural daylight will decrease energy use,which will in turn decrease GHG.
	f an affiliated community college_7: 
	undefined_15: UNM - Gallup hired SMPC Architects to assess Gurley Hall and the most needed improvements. SMPC provided a feasible study that identifies project estimates. The SMPC cost estimator factored in prior costs of similar construction work and the increases in materials cost impacted by the pandemic's supply/demand. The MACC accounts for a 9% annual inflation due to the escalation in cost of materials.[include inflation dollar amount when SMPC completes feasibility]  
	f an affiliated community college_8: 
	For fac: The existing building can be renovated at approximately 49% of the cost of new construction. UNM - Gallup currently spends approximately $75k to maintain the building. The project will address the following deferred maintenance on Gurley Hall and its site:1  Exterior stucco of the building2. Replacement of HVAC preheat coils on five air handlers3. Roof inspection and preventive maintenance and or replacement 4. Update lighting to more efficient LED fixtures5. Exterior improvements at entrance and in parking lot 
	f an affiliated community college_9: 
	undefined_18: UNM - Gallup is given a single allocation that has been consistent for several years.  This is used for campus wide repairs that have the greatest need. Issues that address the health and safety of our personnel are given priority followed by compliance issues. 
	f an affiliated community college_10: 
	undefined_20: When this project is completed, annual operating budgets will be reduced due to the efficiency of the improvements and the repair and maintenance of the upgraded systems will decrease; however, ongoing maintenance and repairs will continue to be required for occupancy.
	f an affiliated community college_11: 
	undefined_22: The interior improvements will utilize new equipment, advanced technology, and building systems that integrate the latest safety measures; they will improve air quality and building safety. The exterior circulation and wayfinding improvements will remediate the conflict of delivery vehicles loading/unloading in the pedestrian zone in front of the campus' main entrance and enhance visibility and safety for faculty, staff, students and visitors to the campus.
	and equ: To plan, design, construct, renovate, improve, equip and furnish Gurley Hall to support student experience and success at the UNM Gallup campus of the university of New Mexico in McKinley county.


